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Market Engagement Questionnaire for Homelessness Prevention Programme

Camden Council are proposing to tender for a Homelessness Prevention programme to incentivise Private Registered Providers (RP’s) of Housing, i.e. Housing Associations registered with the Homes and Communities Agency, to provide and manage up to 100 assured short-hold tenancies (AST).
[bookmark: _GoBack]Within the 100 required properties, we require as many as possible to be available within the Greater London area, with some properties outside of London. This is required to increase the number of private rented tenancies available to customers’ owed accommodation under the homelessness legislation, in order to either prevent the need for them to be placed into temporary accommodation, or to move them on from temporary accommodation. 
The Council will seek to assure customers, councillors, supporting agencies and advocates that the tenancy will be managed by a socially responsible landlord, increasing confidence in our placements and enabling the council to successfully and sustainably place homeless households.
Camden Council is committed to providing as much security and certainty to homeless households and providers of private housing as possible. For this reason, we seek to maximise the length of the initial fixed term period of the AST’s we procure. All tenancies created will be for a minimum of 12 months, but ideally they will be 2 or 3 years. 
To achieve this, we will offer attractive incentive payments so that the RP can afford to provide the tenancies and support the tenants. We are willing to discuss what may be needed to achieve the required step change and long-term improvement.
Camden Council propose to tender for the Homelessness Prevention Project, to start on 01/03/2020. The initial contract will run for a period of 2 – 3 years. If individual providers are selected, but fail to meet the expectations, the contract with them may be terminated earlier.

As part of the development of the procurement approach for this tender, we wish to gather the views of providers on the possible models of service delivery, including how the services can work towards achieving joint outcomes. At the end of this document, you will therefore find a series of questions that we would welcome responses too.






Background 

In the last five years, Camden Council has rehoused over 1100 households into the Private Rented Sector (PRS) – providing accommodation to prevent households from becoming or being homeless or to discharge our housing duty under the Localism Act 2011 on average to 220 households per year. Camden Council has largely managed to meet its targets for placing in Camden and in other London boroughs, with only a very small proportion of households being placed outside of London. In 2017/18, of 170 total placements, Camden Council placed 64 households (49 families and 15 singles) in the PRS in Camden, with a further 105 out-of-borough but within London. Only 1 household was offered and accepted a placement outside of London. 

However maintaining these levels of placements into the PRS in Camden will be increasingly challenging. In 2016, we were very successful in “true prevention” – keeping people in their existing tenancies, which meant that there was a steep drop in the number of new tenancies needed – a reduction from 328 in 2013/14 to 218 in 2016/17. For Camden Council, the most worrying trend likely to affect our identification of tenancies is a lack of 2-bed properties, which is the largest need for us. In reality, this means a lot of 2-bed need households may end up accepting a 1-bed property as a way of accessing the PRS. 

There are further limitations as indicated above as to whether the small number of landlords with accommodation available at or under the Local Housing Allowance (LHA) cap would be willing to let to tenants in receipt of Universal Credit. 

Camden Council does not seek to rent properties at above LHA rates as this undermines another of our key priorities – tenancy sustainment. Supporting households into a tenancy that may be unaffordable to them is not effective long-term prevention of homelessness, as in the medium or long term these tenancies may result in arrears, eviction and a further period of homelessness. 

Availability outside of Camden in London

The introduction of the Local Housing Allowance (LHA) in Camden has been a challenge in seeking to identify and procure sufficient housing to meet the need of homeless households. However, it has also had a distorting effect on the rest of the rental market across London. The Centre for London identified that rents in outer London rose at a faster rate than inner London following the introduction of LHA. 

Whilst there is evidence that there is limited affordable housing available in outer London within LHA rates currently, it is likely that the availability of this will continue to decrease over the next three years. Research undertaken by London Councils shows that whilst inner London has been a challenging market for affordable PRS since the introduction of the LHA cap and benefit cap, outer London markets will have their supply of affordable PRS significantly curtailed in the next few years, particularly for one and two bedroom homes. 


 New Proposed Service Model and Cost

The proposed procurement will comprise Housing Associations registered with the Homes and Communities Agency to provide and manage up to 100 tenancies mainly within the Greater London area, but also outside where this is the only affordable locations for clients. Under the council’s homelessness strategy it is important that offers of PRS accommodation are demand-led so far as possible and meet our household’s needs for employment opportunities, access to educational facilities, health services and appropriate communities. 

Cost

The maximum value of the service is £1,000,000.

Questions
We wish to gather the views of providers on the possible delivery models and we are particularly interested in hearing innovative ideas that could result in delivering shared outcomes across the services.

	1. What is your general level of interest in bidding to deliver the service specified above? In not, please specify why.

	


	2. Are you delivering a similar service at present? If so, what services are you delivering and how are these funded/contracted?

	


	3. Would you be prepared to work in a partnership model with other providers including smaller specialist providers to deliver the service?

	


	4. Would you propose any changes to the proposed model or any different models for delivering the service principles above?

	


	5a. What would you see as the key delivery challenges?

	


	5b. What would you see opportunities based on the proposed models?

	


	6. In what ways do you think the service could best accommodate the different needs and goals of individuals using the services(s) to achieve most positive outcomes?

	


	7. Can you comment on the feasibility of delivering the service against the budgets above?  

	


	8. Using your experience of the private rental sector, do you believe that one provider will be able to source 100 properties in and around the Greater London area, or would you suggest that using multiple providers would better serve the requirement?  

	


	9. Is your organisation delivering a similar requirement on an existing framework? If so, please specify. 

	


	10a. Camden Council is accredited employer with the Living Wage Foundation. We encourage organisations delivering services on behalf of Camden Council to pay their staff at least the London living Wage. 

Please confirm whether your organisation is accredited with the Living Wage Foundation?

	


	10b. Do you pay your staff a salary that is equal to or above the London Living Wage (currently £10.55 per hour).

	


	11. In what ways do you think you could deliver improved Social Value to Camden communities through these services: i.e. improvements in the economic, social and/or environmental well-being of the areas?

	


	12. Do you foresee an implementation period being necessary and is it possible to estimate how long that might be?

	



	13. Would you be willing to meet with us to discuss your views about this procurement further? If so, please provide contact details.

	


	14. Do you have any other comments?

	




We would be grateful if responses to these questions are submitted by email to Dean Chrysostomou - PRS Placements Manager: dean.chrysostomou@camden.gov.uk by 14:00 on Monday 20 May 2019. 

Following this market engagement process, the Council expects to run a procurement exercise with the following indicative key dates:

	Milestone
	Indicative due Date

	Market engagement process
	03 – 20 May 2019

	Procurement strategy Cabinet Member decision
	July 2019

	Advert
	July / August 2019

	Award Decision
	December 2019

	Implementation 
	January – February 2020

	Contract start date
	March 2020



If you are interested in this or any of our advertised contract notices, please register on the Councils e-tendering system, EU Supply (https://www.eu-supply.com) -register online.  

See the link below for more information: 
www.camden.gov.uk/ccm/navigation/business/tenders-and-contracts/
Tenders will also be advertised on the Contract Finder website: https://www.gov.uk/contracts-finder

Note

Interested parties will not be prejudiced by any response or failure to respond to this soft market testing/sounding exercise. A response to this notice does not guarantee any invitation to participate in any future public procurement process that Camden Council may conduct.

This early engagement process does not constitute a call for competition to procure any services for the Council and the Council is not bound to accept any proposals offered. 

Camden Council is not liable for any costs, fees or expenses incurred by any party participating in the soft market testing/sounding exercise. Any procurement of any services by Camden Council in due course will be carried out strictly in accordance with the provisions of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.

Any responses provided will not be treated as commercially confidential and may be used by Camden Council in the final service specifications used for the contracts but no organisation will be individually identified.
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